
 

 

 
 

WSW Executive Committee Meeting 
Zoom Conference Call 

April 24, 2024 3:30 – 5:00 pm 
AGENDA 

 
  
 
3:30   Welcome         A.D. Simmons  
 
3:40  Consent Agenda*        A.D. Simmons  

• Approval of Executive Committee Minutes 

• Approval of Contract Memo 

• Approval of Policy Memo  

• Approval of IRS Form 990                                           
 

3:45  Spotlight Report Out        Mark Tishenko 
 
3:50  Strategic Planning Update       Corey Giles 

 
4:00  IBR – Workforce Report Overview     Darcy Hoffman + Miriam Halliday  
 
4:55  Open Discussion / Other Items      A.D. Simmons 
 
5:00   Adjourn         A.D. Simmons 
 
 
* - Action Required  
 

NOTES 
 

May 22, 2024 – Executive Committee Meeting – In-Person 
May 29, 2924 – WSW Board Retreat (Kalama McMenamins) 
June 26, 2024 – Executive Committee Meeting - Zoom 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89276537096?pwd=dTV2Q3k5aHpBZEk1L0ptckNFQWttQT09
https://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/ibr2024_workforce_summary-2024-03-22_cwwc.pdf


 

WSW Executive/Finance Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, February 28, 2024 
Page | 1 
 

 
WSW Executive Committee Meeting Minutes 

February 28, 2024 
4:00 p.m. 

Zoom Conference Call 
 
Executive Committee Members Present: A.D. Simmons, Corey Giles, Adrienne Watson, 
Monte Constable, Mark Tishenko, and Paige Spratt. 
 

Executive Committee Members Not Present: Ted Sprague, Renny Christopher, and Karen 
Bowerman. 
 
Staff Members Present:  CEO Miriam Halliday, Barri Blair, Amy Gimlin, Marnie Farness, and 
Traci Williams. 
 
WELCOME: 
Interim Chair A.D. Simmons opened the meeting at 3:34 p.m. and welcomed everyone in 
attendance. 
 
APPROVALS: 
Having reached quorum, Interim Chair Simmons entertained a motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda, consisting of the Executive/Finance Committee minutes held on January 24, 2024, 
Contract Memo, and Policy Memo containing; WSW Procurement Policy #1003-5 and WSW 
Supportive Service Policy #3005-11. 
 

Paige Spratt moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented, second by Mark 
Tishenko. Motion carried. 
 

MOU/IFA: 
WSW’s COO, Amy Gimlin and Director of Programs, Marnie Farness presented the 
Workforce System MOU/IFA annual modification memo to the Executive Committee. Amy 
Gimlin summarized the revisions that were made and where to locate each revision in the 
MOU. Questions were addressed by Amy Gimlin, Marnie Farness, and Miriam Halliday. 
 
Monte Constable moved to approve the Workforce System MOU/IFA modifications to 
the full board as presented, second by Paige Spratt. Motion carried. 
 
FINANCE: 
CFO Blair presented the WSW quarterly spending reports for the second quarter of the 
current fiscal year. 
 
CEO UPDATE: 
CEO Halliday shared updates around WSW’s strategic planning, a task force has been 
created consisting of board members; Corey Giles, Corie Dow-Kramer, Nick Massie, Jasmine 



 

WSW Executive/Finance Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, February 28, 2024 
Page | 2 
 

Tolbert, Ebony Price, and John Vanderkin and WSW staff; Miriam Halliday and Kari 
Kollander. The Strategic Planning Facilitator RFQ has been released to the public. The March 
board agenda draft was shared with no edits needed. Rescheduling of the March and August 
Executive Committee meetings was discussed with more details to come. WSW Equal 
Opportunity report was shared out, along with WSW receiving the WSU-V Partnership Award 
at this coming years commencement. CEO Halliday also shared that the EcSA RFP has been 
released to the public and answered all questions. 
 

NEW BUSINESS / OTHER ITEMS 
None was forthcoming. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
With nothing further for the good of the order, Interim Chair Simmons entertained a motion 
to adjourn the meeting at 4:28 p.m. 
 

Corey Giles moved to adjourn the meeting at 4:28 p.m. 



 

 

 
CONTRACT MEMO 

DATE: APRIL 18, 2024 

TO: MIRIAM HALLIDAY, WSW CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 WSW EXECUTIVE BOARD MEMBERS 

FROM: LINDA CZECH, WSW CONTRACTS MANAGER 

RE: CONTRACT UPDATE (FEB-APR 2024) 

 

WSW modified the following contracts: 

• Equus Workforce Solutions to modify budget for Opioid Disaster Recovery Dislocated Worker Grant 
(DWG) contract, no change in total budget of $614,525 or end date of September 30, 2025. 

• Equus Workforce Solutions to increase budget $48,717.37 for State Economic Security for All (EcSA) 
contract, total budget of $550,980.37, no change in end date of June 30, 2024. 

• Partners in Career to modify statement of work and productivity measures for WIOA Title 1 Youth, no 
change in total budget of $215,357 or end date of June 30, 2024. 

• Career Path Services to increase budget by $20,000 for total budget of $662,692.30, no change in end 
date of June 30, 2024. 

• Salsbury & Co to extend the end date to June 30, 2024. No change to the budget of $28,625.00. 

• Equus Workforce Solutions to modify mangement fee schedule for American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 
grant. No change in budget of $25,000 or end date of December 31, 2025. 
 

WSW executed the following contracts: 

• Equus Workforce Solutions for $25,000 for American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) contract, end date of 
December 31, 2024. 

• Equus Workforce Solutions for $1,084,477 for Economic Security for All Community Reinvestment (EcSA 
CR), end date of May 31, 2025. 
 

WSW notification of grant award/execution: 

• WSW receive grant award for Washington Jobs Initiative (WJI) from Spokane Workforce Council through 
the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) for amount of $800,000 end date of September 30, 2025. 

• WSW received grant modification increase of $106,363 for State Economic Security for all for total 
amount of $1,002,285. No change in end date of June 30, 2024. 

• WSW received grant award for Interstate Bridge Replacement Workforce Study from Worksystems for 
total amount of $7,700, date ending of February 2, 2024. 

 
Board Approval Needed-  
 None 



 

Page 1 of 3 

 

POLICY MEMO 

DATE: APRIL 18, 2024 

TO: MIRIAM HALLIDAY 

 WSW EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBERS 

FROM: TRACI WILLIAMS, WSW OPERATIONS MANAGER/SENIOR EXECUTIVE ADMINISTRATOR 

RE: POLICY UPDATES 

 

WSW Data Element Validation Policy 3037-4 
 
This was a revision to our Data Element Validation Policy. Employment Security Department revised the state 
policy to add virtual or remote eligibility documentation. The revised Data Element Validation Policy is posted for 
your reference.  
 

Based on the approval process, this policy approval falls under Tier 1 Executive Committee and Full Board 
notification.  

 

Tier 1 – Minimum 
 

Definition: Minimum revisions consist of grammar, spelling, branding changes, State or Federal mandated 
adjustments, or a new State or Federal mandated policy with no local revisions. These revisions would not 
require Executive or Full Board approval but would be included in a notification memo. 

 
 
WSW LLSIL Policy #3018 
 

This is a required revision for 2024. Annually, Human and Health Services update the Lower Living Standard, this directly relates 
to our eligibility in Title I programs. The updated policy was sent out to providers on April 10, 2024. 
 

Based on the approval process, this policy approval falls under Tier 1 Executive Committee and Full Board 
notification.  

 
Tier 1 – Minimum 

 
Definition: Minimum revisions consist of grammar, spelling, branding changes, State or Federal mandated 
adjustments, or a new State or Federal mandated policy with no local revisions. These revisions would not 
require Executive or Full Board approval but would be included in a notification memo. 

 

 
 
 

https://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/3037-rev-4-data-element-validation.pdf
https://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/3018-income-charts-poverty-llsil-2023-1.pdf


APRIL 2024 POLICY MEMO  

 

Page 2 of 3 

 
 

WSW Stevens Amendment Requirements Policy 2011-2 
 

This was a revision to our Stevens Amendment Requirements Policy. This policy was revised to add the use of a 
QR code when it’s not possible to use a hyperlink on printed materials. WSW and subrecipients may instead use a 
statement including a QR code on digital or print media when brevity is essential.  
 

Based on the approval process, this policy approval falls under Tier 2 Executive Committee approval and 
Full Board notification. 

 
Tier 2 – Intermediate 

Definition: Intermediate revisions consist of minor tweaks to language to improve functionality for service 
providers. The modification could be a change requested by the service provider. These revisions require 
Executive Board approval and Full Board notification. 

 
 
WSW Procurement Policy 1003-6 
 

This revision was made to our Procurement Policy to address concerns presented during the ESD WIOA 
monitoring where a clarification in process would be beneficial.  We aligned the approval chart with the updated 
bylaws and clarified when re-procurement is necessary for operating costs.    

 
Based on the approval process, this policy approval falls under Tier 3 Executive Committee and Full Board 
approval. 

 

Tier 3 – Substantial 
 

Definition: Substantial revisions consist of significant revisions to a current policy or a State or Federal 
mandated “new” policy with local revisions made that will affect service delivery. These revisions require 
approval from both the Executive Committee and Full Board.  

  

 
WSW Coordinated Business Services Policy 4002-3 
 
This is a revision to our Coordinated Business Services Policy. At the last revision, we added Business Services Staff 
functional oversight responsibilities to the One Stop Operator. More recently, it was proposed and approved to 
hire and transfer the oversight responsibilities to the WorkSource Business Services Manager. We also added the 
Next business engagement team under the functional oversight of the WorkSource Business Services Manager. 
The other revisions to this policy were largely grammatical.  

 
Based on the approval process, this policy approval falls under Tier 3 Executive Committee and Full Board 
approval. 

 

Tier 3 – Substantial 
 

Definition: Substantial revisions consist of significant revisions to a current policy or a State or Federal 
mandated “new” policy with local revisions made that will affect service delivery. These revisions require 
approval from both the Executive Committee and Full Board.  

  



APRIL 2024 POLICY MEMO  

 

Page 3 of 3 

 
 

 
 
WSW Economic Security for All (EcSA) 200% Above Poverty Level Policy #3039 Rev 1 
 
This is a revision to our Economic Security for All (EcSA) 200% Above Poverty Level Policy. The Employment 
Security Department revised the state policy to clarify funding expenditure limits on incentives and support 
services. The $5,000 expenditure limit for participants will exclude staff time, career services, and training costs. 
The revised Economic Security for All (EcSA) 200% Above Poverty Level Policy is posted for your reference. 
 

Based on the approval process, this policy approval falls under Tier 1 Executive Committee and Full Board 
notification.  

 
Tier 1 – Minimum 

 
Definition: Minimum revisions consist of grammar, spelling, branding changes, State or Federal mandated 
adjustments, or a new State or Federal mandated policy with no local revisions. These revisions would not 
require Executive or Full Board approval but would be included in a notification memo. 

 
 

https://workforcesw.org/wp-content/uploads/3039-rev-1-ecsa-200-above-poverty-level.pdf










































































 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 1 of 15 

Workforce Southwest Washington  
Policies and Procedures 

PROCUREMENT POLICY 

POLICY: #1003 Revision 56 
 

Original Policy Date: 7/23/2003         
Effective Revision Date:  36/1211/2024 

 

SECTION I – RESPONSIBILITY AND AUTHORITY 
 

A.   General Responsibilities 
The primary procurement responsibility of Workforce Southwest Washington (WSW) is 
to provide oversight and guidance to WSW staff and all subrecipients to ensure that 
legal and performance requirements are met and to ensure that procurement processes 
are consistent, fair, and supportive of WSW’s goals and objectives.  
 

Staff members are responsible for the development, implementation, monitoring, and 
maintenance of all procurement activities in such a way as to meet the requirements of 
applicable laws, regulations, policies, and procedures. 
 

B.    Legal Citation 
This policy complies with standards in the following federal and state laws and rules: 
 

1. Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) of 2014; 
2. OMB Super Circular 2 CFR Part 200.318 through 200.327;  
3. The Revised Code of Washington (RCW); 
4. Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act, Final Rules; and 
5. Employment Security Policy #1015 Procurement and Selection of One Stop 

Operators and Service Providers. 
 

C.    Authority 
WSW, a nonprofit Washington corporation, possesses the ultimate legal authority within 
its jurisdiction for awarding, withdrawing from, or assigning contracts.  The following 
authority has been delegated by the corporation for procurement and contracting 
activities: 
 

Disbursement of Funds 

Decision Making/Signature Authority 

Full Board Executive Board 
Chief Executive 

Officer* 

Contracts for service 
providers funded from 
annual allocations** 

X 
Ratification of 

Executive Board’s 
approval 

X 
Approval 

X 
Contract approval 

Mid-year contract 
modifications*** 

  X 

All other contracts 
$100,000 and under 

  X 

All other contracts 
$100,001 to $250,000 

X**** X X 

https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=1cf3afe7a1b4a30475fa7c41532d4e0e&mc=true&node=se2.1.200_1317&rgn=div8
https://www.doleta.gov/WIOA/Final_Rules_Resources.cfm
https://wpc.wa.gov/policy/state/worksource
https://wpc.wa.gov/policy/state/worksource


 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 2 of 15 

All other contracts greater 
than $250,001 

X 
Ratification of 

Executive Board’s 
approval 

X 
Approval 

X 
Contract approval 

*The Chief Executive Officer may delegate authority for contract approval during their 
absence. 
**Service provider allocations will be approved by the Executive Board and ratified by 
the full board  
*** Modifications to those contracts which were approved by the Board previously or 
remain under $100,000. 
****Contract approval for those contracts between $100,001 and $250,000 will not 
require approval by the Full Board only if the contracts are time sensitive.  All contracts 
approved in this manner will be listed in the full board materials for review at the first 
following Board of Directors meeting. 

 
D. Exclusions 
Purchases of the following items are specifically excluded from this procurement policy:  
1) On-the-Job Training (OJT) as covered by the WSW Training Handbook and provided 
by a properly procured service provider; 2) Individual Training Accounts (ITA) with 
Eligible Training Providers as covered by the WSW Training Handbook (specific federal 
requirements are defined in WIOA Law Title 1, Subtitle B, Chapter 3 – Eligible Training 
Providers and provided by a properly procured service provider; and 3) expenses 
covered by WSW’s Travel Reimbursement procedure as part of the WSW Personnel 
Handbook.  

 

SECTION II – CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 

A. Code of Conduct Applicability 

WSW Board members, the Executive Board of County Commissioners, and WSW 
employees, agents, subrecipients, and contractors shall comply fully with the WSW 
Code of Conduct Contents (below), as well as with the rules and opinions governing 
conflict-of-interest situations contained in the following documents:  State of Washington 
Conflict of Interest #5405 Rev 2; United States Department of Labor (USDOL) laws; 
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) of 2014; and OMB SuperCircular 2 
CFR 200.  Should federal, state or WSW Conflict of Interest Policy contain differing 
provisions, the most stringent interpretation shall apply. 

 

B. Code of Conduct Contents 
WSW Code of Conduct includes, but is not limited to, the following provisions: 
 
It is a breach of ethical standards for WSW board members, Executive Board of County 
Commissioners, contractor or subrecipient staff, or an employee or agent of WSW to 
knowingly participate, directly or indirectly, in a procurement when: 
 

▪ They or a member of their immediate family has a financial interest in the 
procurement; 

▪ A business organization in which they or a member of their immediate family has 
a financial interest in the procurement; or 

▪ A business or other organization with which they are negotiating an arrangement 
concerning prospective employment is involved in the procurement. 

https://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies
https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
https://storemultisites.blob.core.windows.net/media/WPC/adm/policy/5405-2.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=2:1.1.2.2.1&rgn=div5
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=2:1.1.2.2.1&rgn=div5
https://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies


 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 3 of 15 

 
Whenever an individual discovers or becomes aware of an actual or potential conflict, 
he/she should promptly withdraw from the procurement. Members of the Board of 
Directors shall recuse themselves from any voting actions ratifying a contract in which 
they, their business, or their immediate family have an interest. 
 

C. Disclosure 
Any WSW board member, member of the Executive Board of County Commissioners, 
or WSW employee or agent who has or obtains any benefit from any WSW contract 
with a business in which they have financial interest must report this to the Executive 
Board through the Chief Executive Officer in writing. 
 

D.      Gratuities and Kickbacks 
It is a breach of ethical standards for anyone to offer, give, or agree to give any WSW 
employee or former employee, or for a member, employee, agent, or former employee 
to accept from another person a gratuity or an offer of employment in connection with 
any procurement. 
 

It is a breach of ethical standards for any payment, gratuity, or offer of employment to 
be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor/subrecipient under a contract to the prime 
contractor/subrecipient or higher tier subcontractor, or any person associated with 
these, as an inducement for the award of a subcontract. 
 

E. Contingent Fees 
It is a breach of ethical standards for anyone to be retained or to retain anyone to solicit 
or secure a contract for commission, brokerage, or contingent fee or a promise of such 
payments.  This prohibition does not apply to the hiring of bona fide employees or 
contracting for help with grant or proposal writing. 
 

F.     Use of Confidential Information 
It is a breach of ethical standards to use confidential information for actual or anticipated 
personal gain or for the actual or anticipated personal gain of any other person. 
 

G.     Breach of Standards 
Any person willingly involved in a breach of ethical standards or found to be directly or 
indirectly benefiting from a conflict of interest may be subject to disciplinary action. 
 
 

SECTION III – GENERAL PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS  
 

1. All procurements shall be conducted in a manner that maximizes full and open 
competition, regardless of the procurement method.  Competitive procurements 
shall not unduly restrict or eliminate competition as outlined in CFR 200.319. 

2. All expenditures must be necessary and will be reviewed for reasonableness, 
allowability, allocability, and proper procurement was followed. 

3. All construction, remodeling or renovation must have prior written approval from 
funding source. 



 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 4 of 15 

4. All purchases of equipment with a per-unit acquisition price of $5,000 or more and 
a useful life of more than one (1) year require written approval from the funding 
source. 

5. All procurements of program services and large purchases shall clearly set forth all 
requirements which proposers must fulfill and all other factors to be used in 
evaluating proposals.  

6. Competitive procurement is the required process for procuring One-Stop Operators 
(once every four years) and subrecipients to provide WIOA program services 
(once every three years). All other competitively procured contracts may be 
renewed up to four years then must be reprocured.  

a. Exceptions may be made for competitively procured professional 
operational services such as IT, software, network/internet services, 
web hosting, etc. These services must be procured initially in 
accordance with this policy and have a signed vendor agreement or 
contract with a defined contract period. With each agreement renewal 
a justification must be written and approved before a new agreement is 
signed with the vendor. 

6.7. Where appropriate, an analysis shall be made of lease/rental versus purchase 
alternatives to determine which approach is most economical. 

7.8. Consideration shall be given to either consolidating or breaking up procurement 
actions to maximize competition. 

8.9. WSW may “tag on” to other agencies’ procurements or use common goods and 
services where it fosters greater economy and efficiency.  

9.10. WSW will use federal excess and surplus property whenever it is feasible 
and results in cost savings. 

10.11. A factor to be considered in selecting agencies or organizations to deliver 
services shall be the effectiveness of the agency or organization in delivering 
comparable or similar services based upon the meeting of demonstrated 
performance goals, cost, the quality of training, and participant characteristics.  

11.12. Efforts shall be made to include community-based organizations, small 
businesses, minority-owned firms, women-owned firms, historically African-
American and Native American colleges and universities, and faith-based 
organizations in the solicitation process. 

12.13. WSW must seek to avoid the procurement and purchase of duplicate 
facilities or services otherwise available in the area unless it is demonstrated that 
alternative services or facilities would be more effective or more likely to achieve 
performance goals. 

13.14. In identifying any program income or profit to be earned by the proposer, the 
following factors shall be considered in determining whether program income or 
profits are excessive: 

• Complexity of work to be performed 

• Risk born by contractor/subrecipient 

• The contractor’s/subrecipient’s investment 

• The amount of subcontracting 

• The quality of the contractor’s/subrecipient’s record of past performance 



 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 5 of 15 

• Industry profit rates in the surrounding geographical area and  

• Market conditions in the surrounding geographic area. 

14.15. WSW requires accurate and complete reporting of allowable stand-in costs. 

 
 
 
 

SECTION IV – SUBRECIPIENT OR CONTRACTOR DETERMINATION 
 
Anticipated purchases are either from “subrecipients” or from “contractors.”  This 
determines the type of contract terms to be used and affects the cost or price analysis. 
 

A. Subrecipient 
A subrecipient is a legal entity to which an award of federal funds is made, and which is 
accountable for the use of funds provided.  Subrecipients generally perform the 
following activities: 
 

• Determine eligibility for a federally funded program 

• Have performance measured against the objective of the federal program 

• Have responsibility for programmatic decision-making 

• Have responsibility for adherence to applicable federal program compliance 
requirements (for example, the WIOA regulations) and 

• Use federal funds to carry out a program, as opposed to providing goods or 
services to a service provider. 

 
 

B. Contractor 
A contractor is a dealer, distributor, merchant, or other seller providing goods or 
services that are required for the operation of a federal program.  The following activities 
are indicative of a contractor relationship with an organization: 
 

• Provides the goods and services within normal business operations 

• Provides similar goods or services to many different purchasers 

• Operates in a competitive environment 

• Provides goods or services that are ancillary to the operations of the federal 
program and 

• Is not subject to federal compliance requirements. 
 
The determination of a subrecipient as opposed to a contractor takes into account all of 
the characteristics related to the type of provider.  No single factor is used.  See the 
following table for further clarification on contractor/subrecipient determination. Persons 
may also use the Subrecipient versus Vendor Determination Form to aid in the selection 
of contract terms.  

 
 

Contractor/Subrecipient Relationship Determination 
 

Factor Contractor Subrecipient 

../../../Procurement/Forms/Current%20Procurement%20Forms%20&%20Policy/SubrecipientvsVendorDetermination.pdf


 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 6 of 15 

Activity* 
Sell deliverables 
(goods/services) 

Provide services 

Assistance Arrangement Buyer-sell 
Financial assistance to 

operate program 

Federal Rules N/A Compliance 

Purpose of the Award 
To provide specific goods or 

services 
To carry out a program role 

Receipt of Funds** Number of items delivered 
Cost-incurred or 
performance met 

Risk Risk to contractor 
Share risk with awarding 

agency 

Type of Product 
Provide specific product or 

service ancillary to the 
federal program 

Design a program to meet 
a broader goal such as 
performance outcomes 

*There may be instances where it is possible to obtain the same type of services under 
either a contractor or a subrecipient award 
** Performance and outcome-based payments are possible under both contractor and 
subrecipient awards. 

 

SECTION V – PROCUREMENT PROCESS 

 
A. Levels 

 
WSW groups procurement requirements for materials and services into three levels, 
in accordance with 2CFR200.320 and 2CFR200.323.  The levels are defined as: 

 
Level 1 – Large 
 

Amounts above $250,000:  
 

• Must be procured by competitive proposals, meeting the standards 
outlined in 200.320(d) for broad publication and solicitation as well as 
technical evaluation.  See also detailed requirements in Section V below. 

• Cost or price comparisons must be performed on all proposals in this 
category. The form/process used is based on what is outlined in the RFP. 
May use the Price Analysis Form as start for documentation. 

• An independent estimate must be formed in advance of proposals 
received. 

 

Level 2 – Small 
 
Amounts less than or equal to $250,000 and more than $10,000: 

 

• Price or rate quotations must be obtained from an adequate number of 
qualified sources. 

• Price analysis should be documented using the Cost Comparison Form. 

• Small purchases costing more than $100,000, must be procured using a 
competitive procurement method. 

 

http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=2:1.1.2.2.1&rgn=div5#se2.1.200_1320
http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?node=2:1.1.2.2.1&rgn=div5#se2.1.200_1323
../../../Procurement/Forms/Current%20Procurement%20Forms%20&%20Policy/Price%20Analysis%20Form.doc
../../../Procurement/Forms/Current%20Procurement%20Forms%20&%20Policy/Cost%20Comparison%20Template.2018.xlsx


 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 7 of 15 

Level 3 – Minor 
 
Amounts less than or equal to $10,000:  

 

• Aggregate dollar amount does not exceed $10,000. 

• Price deemed reasonable.  Documentation must include one of the 
following: written quotes from qualified sources, “tag on” purchases, 
catalog or market price reviews, and other means undertaken to establish 
price reasonableness and to foster economy and efficiency in all 
purchasing decisions.   

• Distribute purchases equitably among suppliers. 
 

In developing cost estimates for prospective purchases or operating services, 
consider the maximum anticipated need for similar items or services over an 
estimated period of 12 months.  If there is any reasonable likelihood that costs may 
exceed the highest dollar limit of the applicable procurement level, use of the next 
higher procurement level is strongly recommended.   
 
Procurement activities and procedures described in this policy and prescribed by 2 
CFR are designed to adhere to procurement requirements applicable to 
expenditures of federal funds and are not required and may not be applicable when 
non-federal funds are used to make purchases. Authorization to use a given 
procurement method rests with the Chief Executive Officer or their designee. 

 

B. Types of Procurement Methods 
 

a. Request for Proposals (RFP) 
The RFP is a set of documents that includes a description of the product(s) or 
service(s) desired, enabling a potential contractor/subrecipient to submit a 
proposal.  The RFP will include information necessary to evaluate proposals 
submitted.  
 
A RFP method is used when: 

 
1. The service needed precludes developing a specification or purchase 

description so precise that all proposers would have an identical 
understanding to approach the requirements; and 

2. Two or more responsible suppliers are likely to be willing and able to compete 
effectively for the award; or 

3. Procurement of One-Stop Operators or subrecipients to provide WIOA 
program services; or 

4. Goods or services procured for $100,000 or more; or 

5. Goods or services are best procured by this method regardless of cost. 
 

b. Request for Qualifications 
A request for qualifications is used when the same conditions listed above under 
the description of a RFP exist and agency wishes to solicit a number of qualified 
providers who will work as a team.  It may also be used to solicit and determine 
the most qualified providers from which a competitive procurement will result. 



 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 8 of 15 

 
c. Request for Quote 

A request for quote is a solicitation for goods or services in which an agency asks 
suppliers to submit a price quote on the chance to complete specific tasks or 
projects. Request for quotes generally ask for a more comprehensive price quote 
for something that is well-defined and quantifiable, such as hardware. 
 

d. Cost Analysis 
An analysis of goods or services. Once analysis is done on goods or services 
from each proposer, a comparison is completed. A cost comparison is done with 
three or more quotes or proposals. Analysis and comparison should be done 
using the same criteria on identical or similar goods or services.  
 

e. Tag On 
Agencies may use other agencies’ procurements or use common goods and 
services where it fosters greater economy and efficiency. Competitive 
procurement requirements may be met by the use of competitive procurement by 
another agency.  Tag-on agencies may include, but are not limited to, federal, 
state and local governments, and nonprofit entities who maintain documentation 
of an open, competitive selection process.  Considering tag-on purchases does 
not preclude a price or cost analysis and comparison. 
 

f. Written into Grant 
In some cases, subrecipients can be written into the original grant as “required 
partners”. In most cases, this requires prior approval from the funding agency. 
Documentation of approval must be kept in their file. If a grant is awarded with 
named subrecipients, that becomes the approved procurement method (sole 
source). No further procurement is needed based on the funder’s requirement 
that they be partners in the project. Their proposed services and costs are 
included in the proposal and accepted as such by the funder. 
 

C. Competitive Procurement 
 
a. Request for Qualifications Contents 

As applicable, Request for Qualifications, shall include the following information: 
 
1. Name and address of requesting agency (ie: WSW); 

2. Name and contact information of person to contact; 

3. Detailed description a specific project completion requested; 

4. Funding parameters; 

5. Requirements for preparation and submission package, due date, content 
and format, number of copies, and the location/email address and the person 
to whom the package should be submitted; 

6. Process and procedure by which the package will be evaluated, including 
identification of specific criteria to be used; 

7. Description of the procedures for responding to inquiries; 

8. Must include Stevens Amendment statement following WSW Policy #2011 

https://workforcesw.org/results-and-data/policies


 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 9 of 15 

9. Description of next steps once qualifications are evaluated and the process 
for responding to the upcoming RFP; and 

10. Appeal procedures for contesting results. 
 

b. Request for Quotes Contents 
As applicable, Request for Quotes, shall include the following information: 
 
1. Name and address of awarding agency (ie: WSW); 

2. Name and contact information of person to contact; 

3. Detailed description of specific goods or project completion requested; 

4. Funding parameters; 

5. Technical requirements for the material, product, or service to be procured 
including specific features of “brand name or equal” products; 

6. Requirements for preparation and submission of quote, due date, content and 
format, number of copies, and the location/email address and the person to 
whom the quote should be submitted; 

7. Process and procedure by which the quote will be evaluated; 

8. Description of the procedures for responding to inquiries; 

9. Must include Stevens Amendment statement following WSW Policy #2011. 

10. A schedule for the receipt of quotes and approximate dates for review and 
award; and 

11. Appeal procedures for contesting results. 
 

c. Request for Proposal Contents 
As applicable, Request for Proposals, shall include the following information: 

  
1. Name and address of awarding agency (ie: WSW); 

2. Name and contact information of person to contact; 

3. General description of the program, including identification of the applicable 
federal and state laws and regulations with which the subrecipient must 
comply; 

4. The population to be served and minimum service levels to specific target 
groups; 

5. An estimate of the number/range of individuals to be served and expected 
performance in each activity including timeline if applicable; 

6. A Statement of Work or Specifications, which explains what needs to be 
accomplished. This is the portion of the solicitation that defines the program 
goals and objectives. It represents a description of the services to be 
acquired; 

7. Applicable program staff requirements; 

8. Funding parameters by activity; 

9. A description of the training and/or services to be provided, including the 
period of performance; 

https://workforcesw.org/results-and-data/policies


 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 10 of 
15 

10. Applicable monitoring and reporting requirements, including, but not limited 
to, data entry, performance, and financial reporting; 

11. Criteria for performance and fiscal accountability; 

12. Other services or requirements (e.g., responsibility for eligibility determination, 
responsibility for support payments, audit requirements, etc.); 

13. Prohibition against subcontracting without prior approval; 

14. Request for a line item budget of proposed costs, including any profit to be 
gained and/or funds to be contributed; 

15. Request for a budget narrative to explain allocated item(s) that are not self-
explanatory on the line item budget; 

16. Request for established programmatic and financial capability to perform 
work; 

17. Requirements for preparation and submission of the proposal, due date and 
time, content and format, number of copies, and the location and the person 
to whom the    proposal should be submitted; 

18. Scoring criteria including the process and procedure by which the proposals 
will be evaluated for competitiveness, allowability, and reasonableness; 

19. Description of the procedures for responding to inquiries; 

20. A schedule for the receipt of proposals, and approximate dates for review and 
award; 

21. Must include Stevens Amendment statement following WSW Policy #2011. 

22. Appeal procedures for contesting the procurement result; and 

23. Include assurances that the proposer will comply fully with nondiscrimination 
and equal opportunity provisions, as well as all the applicable requirements 
imposed by WIOA laws and regulations, including but not limited to lobbying, 
debarment, suspension, drug-free workplace, signature authority, ownership, 
organization, management capabilities, financial resources, and audit history. 

 
d. Notice & Advertisement 

Procurement Requests for Qualifications, Quotes and Proposals shall be widely 
distributed to all interested parties and advertised in multiple ways that will reach 
a suitable audience. Notice elements are to include: 

 
1. Posting on the WSW website (www.workforcesw.org); 

2. Advertising in one or more media outlets including social media; 

3. WSW Program Staff notification to WSW Board of Directors of upcoming RFP 
solicitations; 

4. Posting of RFP must be out for solicitation for a minimum of 30 days if 
procuring One-Stop Operators or for WIOA program subrecipients. Minimum 
posting times for all other requests are at the discretion of staff; 

5. Direct local contact, which includes contacting known referrals and entities 
that have expressed specific interest; and 

https://workforcesw.org/results-and-data/policies
http://www.workforcesw.org/


 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 11 of 
15 

6. May include direct national solicitation, which may include known referrals 
and national entities that have expressed interest in responding.  

 
e. Proposal Evaluation 

All competitive proposal responses will be evaluated pursuant to the criteria 
identified in the procurement document.  The following evaluation procedures 
generally apply: 

 
1. Initial Proposal Review:  Upon receiving proposals, staff will conduct an initial 

review of proposal packages to determine completeness and adherence to 
the requirements defined in the procurement request document.  Incomplete 
and other non-responsive proposals may be removed from further 
consideration. 

 
2. Technical Evaluation:  Evaluation criteria and selection methodology will be 

listed in the procurement request document. Staff will develop an evaluation 
form for use in the evaluation process. While evaluation criteria may change 
from project to project, most proposal reviews shall consider the following 
elements: 

 
a. Administrative and technical competence, including satisfactory record of 

integrity, business ethics and fiscal accountability; 
b. Program design and how that compliments WSW Strategic Plan, including 

proposer’s ability to meet requirements in procurement request document 
(e.g performance, budget, timeline); 

c. Past experience and demonstrated effectiveness in delivering the same or 
similar services (e.g job training, service delivery, past performance, past 
fiscal integrity); 

d. Organization and staff qualifications, including necessary organization, 
experience, accounting and operational controls; 

e. Cost effectiveness.  Factor(s) in addition to price or cost will be considered 
in making an award.  

 
3. Evaluation Committee: A committee may be established to discuss ratings 

and to reach a consensus after each individual has reviewed the proposals 
and developed preliminary ratings. An Evaluation Committee is required for 
One-Stop Operator and WIOA program service proposals. The evaluation 
committee may, at its discretion, interview any or all proposers to clarify 
responses and/or elicit additional information to assist in making a final 
determination. All reviewers must certify no real or apparent conflict of interest 
exists. Documentation describing the evaluation and selection process will be 
maintained by staff. 

 
f. Procurement Commitment and Awards 

The following steps are taken once the evaluation process is complete: 
 
1. If applicable, the evaluation committee presents their recommendation for 

award to WSW Executive Board. If approved, the recommendation moves 
forward to the WSW Board of Directors for final approval of award. If not 



 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 12 of 
15 

applicable to go in front of board, the evaluation is presented to WSW CEO 
for final approval. 

2. Agencies or individuals submitting written proposals or quotes shall be 
notified in writing of the acceptance or denial of their proposal or quote.   

3. No contract award shall be considered final until a written agreement or 
purchase order is signed by an authorized WSW employee. 

4. A contract shall be awarded conforming to the requirements of the request, 
subject to negotiation, and is reasonable in price.   

5. Any or all proposals or quotes may be rejected when it is in the best interest 
of WSW.  

 
D. Procurement File Standards  

 
Procurement records will be retained for three (3) years after final payment on a 
contract or purchase and all other matters are closed.  Records should detail the 
significant history of procurement.  These records will include, if applicable, but are 
not necessarily limited to, the following: 

 
1. Rationale for the method of procurement (small purchase, request for 

proposal, etc.); 
2. The selection of agreement type (cost reimbursement or fixed price); 
3. Notice to awardee and those denied; 
4. Copy of the solicitation package; 
5. Copy of the public notification; 
6. List of proposers and media outlets to which notice was sent; 
7. Agenda and minutes of a bidders’ conference, if held; 
8. Written responses to all clarifying questions received outside of the bidders’ 

conference; 
9. Copy of each proposal received; 
10. Documentation of lack of proposals received, if applicable;  
11. Signed evaluation forms from all reviewers, including conflict of interest 

statement;  
12. Documentation of the rationale for selection and funding of any proposer that 

did not receive the highest score/ranking in the evaluation process; 
13. Completed cost or price analysis for each prequalified proposal; and 
14. Copy of any submitted protests and the resolution of each. 

 

SECTION VI – NONCOMPETITIVE - SOLE SOURCE 
 

Noncompetitive sole source is procurement from only one provider or contractor.   
 
Circumstances under which a sole-source contract may be awarded include the 
following: 

1. The services or goods are available only from a single source.  

2. The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay 
resulting from competitive proposal (emergency must be outside of our 
control).  



 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 13 of 
15 

3. Grantor expressly authorized noncompetitive proposals in response to a 
written request or  

4. After solicitation through a number of sources, competition is determined 
inadequate.  

 
Applicable for any purchase at or under $250,000, or over $250,001 if a competitive 
method has failed. 

 

All sole-source purchases shall be documented using the Sole Source Authorization 
Form, including:   

1. The reason why regular large, small, or minor purchase procedures were 
infeasible;  

2. Which sole-source rationale was applied;  
3. A cost analysis;  
4. Business need;  
5. Market research to conclude that alternative sources were inappropriate or 

unavailable; and  
6. Signed authorization for the sole-source award. 

 
Sole Source Authorization form must be completed and approved prior to purchase or 
contract signed. 

 

SECTION VII – DEFINITIONS OF COMMON TERMS 
 

Acquisition: The process of purchasing goods and services through purchase, rent, or 
lease.  Includes the establishment of needs, description of requirements, selection of 
procurement method, selection of sources, solicitation of procurement, solicitation for 
offers, award of contract, financing, contraction administration, and related functions. 
 
Competitive Proposal: A method for purchasing goods and services, usually of a 
highly complex and technical nature whereby qualified individuals or agencies are 
solicited by means of a Request for Proposals or Quotes.  Negotiations are conducted; 
the best proposal or quote, as judged against criteria contained in the procurement 
document, is accepted; and an award is issued. 
 
Contract:  An agreement enforceable by law between two or more parties, could also 
include a Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
Cost Analysis:  A cost analysis is done on each proposal, quote or qualification and 
must include a documented review and evaluation of each element of cost to determine 
reasonableness, allocable and allowable.   
 
Cost Comparison:  A cost comparison compares the cost analysis done on each 
proposal, quote or qualification using identical criteria.  
 
Cost Reimbursement Contracts:  Contracts based on payment by an agency to a 
contractor or subrecipient of allowable, reasonable, and allocable costs incurred as 
prescribed in the contract.  These contracts may not require completion of the contract 

../../../Procurement/Forms/Current%20Procurement%20Forms%20&%20Policy/Sole%20Source%20Authorization%20Template.docx
../../../Procurement/Forms/Current%20Procurement%20Forms%20&%20Policy/Sole%20Source%20Authorization%20Template.docx


 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 14 of 
15 

work, but rather the best efforts of the subrecipient.  The types of cost reimbursement 
contracts as defined in FAR part 16. 
 
Davis-Beacon Wages:  Wage determinations issued by the Department of Labor, 
which determines the minimum wage rates to pay on federally funded or assisted 
construction projects.  The prevailing wage rate corresponds directly to the union wage.  
This is especially true in urban areas, where union membership tends to be higher.  
http://www.dol.gov/esa/programs/dbra/whatdbra.htm  
 
Effective Competition:  A market condition that exists when two or more 
contractors/subrecipients, acting independently, actively compete for an agency’s 
business in a manner that ensures the agency will be offered the lowest price or best 
technical design to meet its minimum needs. 
 
Program Income: Gross income earned by the contractor/subrecipient that is directly 
generated by a supported activity or earned as a result of the award.  Program income 
includes, but is not limited to, income from fees for services performed; fees for the use 
of rental or real personal property acquired under an award; license fees and royalties 
on patents and copyrights; and interest on loans made with award funds.  Interest 
earned on advances of federal funds is not program income.  Except as otherwise 
provided in federal awarding agency regulations or the terms and conditions of the 
award, program income does not include the receipt of principal on loans, rebates, 
credits, discounts, etc., or interest earned on any of them. 

Purchase Order:  A document an agency uses to execute a purchase transaction with 
a contractor.  It serves as notice to a seller or contractor that a purchase agreement or 
award was made. 

Statement of Work (SOW):  That portion of the contract that clearly and concisely 
defines requirements of the specific work to be accomplished. Statements of work are 
tailored to consider the period of performance, deliverable items, if any, and the desired 
degree of performance flexibility.  
 
Subcontract:  An agreement between a prime or general contractor/subrecipient and a 
subcontractor for the execution of a portion of the contractual obligation of the prime 
contract. 

 

SECTION VIII – CITATIONS 
 

These procurement policies, practices, and procedures may be revised from time to 
time without prior notice by WSW. 
 
 

SUPERSEDES: 
 

• SWWDC #1003 Procurement Policy Revision 3 dated 7/26/2016 

• WSW #1003 Procurement Policy Revision 4 dated 8/28/2019 
 
 

http://www.dol.gov/esa/programs/dbra/whatdbra.htm
http://government.onvia.com/?p=51


 

 

WSW Policy #1003-5 6 Procurement                                                                                        Page 15 of 
15 

WEBSITE: 
 
http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies  
 

http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies


 

 

WSW #2011 Rev 1 2 Stevens Amendment Requirements Policy                    Page 1 of 4 

Workforce Southwest Washington                       
Policies and Procedures  

 
STEVENS AMENDMENT REQUIREMENTS 
POLICY #2011 Rev 1 2  
           
Date of Original Policy:   12/21/2021  
Effective Revision Date: 3/12/20244/25/2024 

 
PURPOSE 
Workforce Southwest Washington (WSW) has established this policy to ensure 
compliance with the Stevens Amendment. WSW integrates State ESD Policy 1027 
guidance, in revision 1 of this local policy, to update and ensure funding information 
language for WSW federally funded projects or programs. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
WSW has established the following policy pursuant to P.L. 115-141, Division H, Title V, 
Section 505. P.L. 115-141, Division H, Title V, Section 505 is an appropriations provision 
that requires grantees of the Departments of Labor (DOL), Health and Human Services 
(HHS), and Education to disclose for a grant program the percent of the costs financed 
with federal funds, the federal dollar amount, and the percentage and dollar amount 
financed by nongovernmental funds. Additionally, a different two-part formulation of the 
Stevens Amendment is included in the Department of Agriculture’s (USDA’s) general 
permanent statutory authority at 7 USC 2209d.  
 
The policy requirements below are separate from those in 2 CFR 200 and, when 
appropriate, both must be complied with. 
 
 
POLICY  

a. Stevens Amendment Language Content 
WSW staff as well as WSW’s Subrecipient Program Operators and Managers will 
include a statement in all applicable outreach and marketing materials 
acknowledging the use of Federal funds. Applicable outreach and marketing 
materials include but are not limited to - statements; press releases; requests for 
proposals; bid solicitations; and other documents (see subsection b., Documents 
Subject to Disclosure) describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part 
with Federal money.  

 
All grantees receiving Federal funds, including but not limited to State and local 
governments and recipients of Federal research grants, shall clearly state:  

1. The dollar amount and percentage of Federal funds for the project or program,  
2. Federal funding entity (name of the fund allocation, grant, or program),  
3. The funding period, and 
4. The dollar amount and percentage of non-governmental sources of funds for 
the project or program, 

 
b. Documents Subject to Disclosure  



 

 

WSW #2011 Rev 1 2 Stevens Amendment Requirements Policy                    Page 2 of 4 

Under the Stevens Amendment, “documents” is any communication including but 
not limited to, public statements, social media posts, toolkits, resource guides, 
websites, and visual presentations. For example, an emailed newsletter intended 
for the public that describes a federally funded program requires the disclosure 
statement.  
 
The following list includes some examples of documents or other publications 
that may describe a project or program that federal money funds in whole or in 
part:  

• Bids for solicitations  

• Blogs/vlogs  

• Brochures  

• E-mail blasts  

• Manuals  

• Press releases  

• Promotional materials (e.g., fliers, posters, advertisements)  

• Requests for proposals (e.g., supplemental and continuation proposals) 

• Resource guides  

• Documents that include statements about the program or project  

• Toolkits  

• Visual presentations (e.g., PowerPoint presentations)  

• Equal Opportunity and Grievance/Compliant handouts provided to 
enrollees  

 
c. Organizational websites “describing projects or programs,” defined as: any 

communication in furtherance of accomplishing the goals of the federal project or 
program for which the grantee has an award, are subject to the Stevens 
Amendment disclosure statement.  
 
For example, an organizational website page that describes DOL programs over 
which the organization has administrative and/or operational oversight, such as 
WIOA Title I-B, National Dislocated Worker Grants, etc.  
 

d. Contracts do not require the Stevens Amendment disclosure statement. The 
disclosure is necessary only when issuing statements, press releases, RFPs, bid 
solicitations, and other publicly available documents describing projects or 
programs funded in whole or in part with federal money.  
 

e. The Stevens Amendment is not required on all pages of a document or 
communication nor is it required on each separate web page. At least one page 
must contain the disclosure statement.  
 

f. To minimize waste of costly resources, existing printed documents that do not 
include the Stevens Amendment disclosure need not be thrown away and may 
continue to be used, but any reprinting, republication of existing documents, or 
creation of new documents or materials must be updated subsequent to 
publication of this policy and future printings must meet Stevens Amendment 
requirements.  
 

i. Allowance of Hyperlinks. When it is not practical to include all elements from 3.a. 
above within digitala communication, WSW has developed a web page providing 
funding for the program or fiscal year, found linked in the website’s footer, which 
is sufficient when referenced along with the statement:a hyperlink to the funding 
information is sufficient, along with the statement:  

 



 

 

WSW #2011 Rev 1 2 Stevens Amendment Requirements Policy                    Page 3 of 4 

“This [fill in the blank-project(s)/program(s)] receive(s) support and 
funding from a U.S. Department of Labor [fill in the blank] grant(s) 
provided through Workforce Southwest Washington. Read more 
about WSW fU.S. DOL ederal funding at www.workforcesw.org.”  

 
WSW has developed a web page providing funding for the program or fiscal 
year, which can be found on the linked footer of www.workforcesw.org. 

i. Use of QR Code. Because it is not possible to hyperlink on printed material, 
WSW and subrecipients may instead use a statement including a QR code on 
digital or print media when brevity is essential. Below is the QR code which links 
directly to WSW’s funding page. 

 

 
 
Examples of appropriate compliance statements:  
 

If the document includes all four (4) of the elements in Section 3.a. (above) in the 
body of the document, no additional Stevens Amendment statement, or  weblink, or 
QR code is needed. For example: 
 

1. Full Stevens Amendment funding statement containing all the elements in 
section 3.a.  
 
For Example: “The local WIOA Youth program is supported by the 
USDOL Employment and Training Administration. $765,123 (93.9% of 
total) is financed by PY23 allocation of Federal funds to/through 
Workforce Southwest Washington, and $50,000 (6.1% of total) is being 
financed by other sources.”  
 
OR  
 

2. “This [fill in the blank-project(s)/program(s)] receive(s) support and 
funding from a U.S. Department of Labor [fill in the blank] grant(s) 
provided through Workforce Southwest Washington. Read more about 
WSW federal funding at WSW Funding Disclosures.”  
 
OR 
 

3.  “This [fill in the blank-project(s)/program(s)] is funded 

through a USDOL grant. To learn more about funding, follow this QR 
code.” 

 
 

g. Compliance and Monitoring  
WSW, as the Administrative Entity and Fiscal Agent for the Southwest Workforce 
Area and its subrecipients of WIOA funds, will formally monitor annually, the 

http://www.workforcesw.org/
https://workforcesw.org/federal-funding-disclosure


 

 

WSW #2011 Rev 1 2 Stevens Amendment Requirements Policy                    Page 4 of 4 

outreach and marketing materials distributed by self or subrecipients receiving 
state or federal dollars in accordance with the grant requirements. 

 
 
REFERENCES  

• Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2023 specifically Div. H, Title V, Sec. 505 

• ESD Policy 1027 
 
SUPERSEDES 

• Stevens Amendment Requirements Policy 2011 effective 12/21/2021 
 

WEBSITE 
http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies  
 
 
INQUIRIES 
Please contact Tamara Toles ttoles@workforcesw.org (360) 567-10575 with questions. 
 

https://storemultisites.blob.core.windows.net/media/WPC/adm/policy/1027.pdf
http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies
mailto:ttoles@workforcesw.org


 

 

WSW Policy 4002 Rev 23:  Coordinated Business Services   Page 1 of 3 

Workforce Southwest Washington 
WorkSource System Policies and Procedures  

 
COORDINATED BUSINESS SERVICES 
POLICY #:  4002 Revision 23 
 
Original Policy Date: 4/16/2012  
Revision Date:  3/9/20226/12/2024 

 
Purpose: 
Workforce Southwest Washington (WSW) is issuing this policy to set standards for 
delivering a minimum menu of consistent and coordinated services to businesses through 
WorkSource, Next, WSW, and, as applicable, affiliate sites.   

 
Background:  
One of the premises of U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) programs is that they serve two 
distinct customers: job seekers and businesses. WSW places the business customer in 
the driver’s seat of the local workforce development system. It is WSW’s vision that 
WorkSource and Next serves as a talent development and delivery system, sourcing and 
preparing talent job seekers to meet specific business needs, particularly those in the 
region’s high-growth, high-demand industries of healthcare and social assistance, 
behavioral health, construction and clean energy, advanced manufacturing and 
semiconductors, and technologytechnology jobs.   
 
Policy:  
WSW developed a local business services plan, which includes the following: 

• WSW Business Service Staff are responsible for business outreach and 
engagement, communicating business workforce needs (including the need to 
create or fill training opportunities) to WorkSource and Next through Launchpad 
and email communications, and entering job postings into Launchpad so that 
WorkSource and Next can source, prepare, and match talent. 

• WorkSource and Next Staff are responsible for doing business outreach and 
engagement as the needs of WorkSource and Next customers, programs, and 
service delivery contracts dictate. All in-sector business outreach will go through 
WSW’s business team and be documented in Launchpad, all other business 
outreach and service delivery will be performed by WorkSource and Next and 
should be documented in Launchpad. WorkSource and Next Business Services 
staff are responsible for communicating open jobs and business needs internally 
to all departments, referring qualified job candidatesjob seekers to open positions 
in Launchpad, dWorkSourceWA, and other jobs identified by the WorkSource and 
Next Business Services teams, spearheading the recruitment of candidatesjob 
seekers for training programs, and all administrative tasks associated with 
Incumbent Worker Training, On-the-Job Training, Internships/WEX, Cohort 
Training, and Customized Training.  In addition, WorkSource and Next are is 
responsible for ensuring that businesses who contact WorkSource or Next directly 
are appropriately triaged (IE – WSW sector businesses are connected to WSW 
and receive assistance to address any immediate needs, including access to 
WorkSourceWA, all other businesses receive the service(s) needed including 
access to WorkSourceWA).WorkSource and Next staff are responsible for 



 

 

WSW Policy 4002 Rev 23:  Coordinated Business Services   Page 2 of 3 

identifying job seekers based on open jobs, training opportunities, and for WSW 
industries of focus, and entering job candidatesjob seekers into Launchpad to 
create a qualified talent pool so that businesses have immediate access to pre-
qualified talent.  In addition, WorkSource and Next staff are responsible for doing 
business outreach and engagement as the needs of WorkSource and Next 
customers and service delivery contracts dictate.  All in-sector business 
engagement will go through WSW’s business team, all other business 
engagement should be documented in Launchpad.  

• Other Partner or affiliate site staff are responsible for understanding business 
needs communicated through WorkSource, Next, and WSW and sourcing and 
preparing talent accordingly.   

• Economic Development Partner staff are responsible for creating business 
connections between WSW and companies in Southwest Washington, connecting 
WSW to business leaders to provide program and candidate feedback to support 
continuous improvement efforts, and for connecting WSW to companies at risk of 
leaving the region so that intervention and retention strategies may be deployed.   

• One-Stop OperatorWorkSource Business Services Manager (OSO) is responsible 
for working in partnership with WorkSource and Next Leadership to develop criteria 
and processes for assessing and qualifying candidatesjob seekers to create a 
system where businesses have access to the candidatesjob seekers they need 
when they need them. In partnership with WSW Project Managers,  and 
WorkSource, and Next staff, develop strategies to target the number and type of 
occupations that need to be sourced and/or trained to meet the needs of industry. 
The OSO Manager will then work with the WorkSource and Next Leadership 
Teams to provide guidance and expected outcomes to the WorkSource and Next 
Centers.   
 
The OSO Manager will also ensure that all business services staff in the 
centerWorkSource and Next are properly trained and utilizing the required data 
management systems for all customerto document business engagement and 
service delivery in Launchpad, business, and qualified talent data 
entry/management. The OSO Manager will work with the WorkSource and Next 
Leadership Teams to develop and document a process for business triage to 
ensure that businesses who contact WorkSource or Next for services, get what 
they need when they need it.  The OSO Manager will work with WorkSource and 
Next Leadership Teams to monitor and track progress towards meeting talent 
development goalsthe goals of the WorkSource Business Engagement Plan and 
will be responsible for keeping this plan updated. The OSO will work with the 
WorkSource Leadership Team to develop and maintain a business triage desk-aid 
to support WorkSource staff and their ability to ensure that businesses are 
appropriately connected to WSW Project Managers when appropriate and that 
proper documentation in Launchpad occurs. The OSO Manager will also ensure 
that employers have access to post jobs publicly on WorkSourceWA. 

 
The OSO Manager must implement the WorkSource functions of the Business 
Services Policy including, but not limited to:   

 
1. Regular performance reporting for WSW to monitor and update progress 

towards targets from One-Stop Operator (OSO) contract all contracts 
related to serving businesses. 



 

 

WSW Policy 4002 Rev 23:  Coordinated Business Services   Page 3 of 3 

2. Ensure the minimum menu of Business Services are available CFR 
678.430 & 678.435.  

3. Ensure all WorkSource and Next staff are knowledgeable of all the Basic 
Business Services (training documented and/or knowledge demonstrated) 
or able to make appropriate referrals where the service can be accessed. 

4. Utilize the statewide ETO system and local system Launchpad to:  
o Create and manage job orders and 
o Document employer services in ETO and Launchpad and 
o Enter job seeker information and qualify talent in Launchpad and  
o Use Launchpad to document job seeker referrals and placements 

for Launchpad jobs. 

Business Service Staff have the right to refuse staff assisted services to employers, 
including but not limited to investment, if employer is not following COVID-19 safety 
protocols, other employee safety protocols, has history of employee or applicant 
complaints either discrimination or otherwise, or is not current on required taxes and fees. 
Staff should document concerns in case notes and consult WSW before refusing service.   
 
 
References/Resources: 

• Combined Final Rule 

• WIOA Law 
 
Supersedes: 

• WSW Policy #4002 Revision 1, Coordinated Business Services  

• WSW Policy #4002 Rev 2, Coordinated Business Services effective 3/9/2022 
 

Website: 
http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies  
 
 

https://www.govregs.com/regulations/expand/title20_chapterV_part678_subpartB_section678.430#title20_chapterV_part678_subpartB_section678.435
https://www.govregs.com/regulations/expand/title20_chapterV_part678_subpartB_section678.430#title20_chapterV_part678_subpartB_section678.435
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2016-08-19/pdf/2016-15977.pdf
https://www.congress.gov/113/bills/hr803/BILLS-113hr803enr.pdf
http://workforcesw.org/providers#OperationsPolicies


From: Traci Williams
To: Traci Williams
Subject: Contract/Policy Email Approved - 5 Approvals
Date: Tuesday, April 2, 2024 3:35:09 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Yes:
A.D. Simmons
Renny Christopher
Corey Giles
Karen Bowerman
Monte Constable
Mark Tishenko
Ted Sprague
 
Haven’t heard back from:
Paige Spratt
Adrienne Watson
 
No:
N/A
 
Best,
Traci
 

TRACI WILLIAMS
Senior Executive Administrator/Operations Manager
twilliams@workforcesw.org  360.567.1070 www.workforcesw.org
 
Workforce Southwest Washington
805 Broadway, Suite 412 | Vancouver, WA 98660
Follow us:  Twitter I LinkedIn
 
 
 
 

 
 
From: Traci Williams 
Sent: Thursday, March 28, 2024 10:29 AM
Cc: Miriam Halliday <mmartin@workforcesw.org>
Subject: WSW Executive Committee Contract/Policy Email Approval Needed

 
WSW Executive Committee Members,
 
The contracts below and attached policy need your approval now as we cannot wait until the next
Executive Committee and Board of Director meeting to execute these contracts and implement this

mailto:TWilliams@workforcesw.org
mailto:TWilliams@workforcesw.org
mailto:twilliams@workforcesw.org
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.workforcesw.org%2F&data=05%7C02%7CTWilliams%40workforcesw.org%7C6c99ef5111624357763108dc536523e7%7C37fd92a28edd48db993d6149f5585de3%7C0%7C0%7C638476941082954685%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=qn8ZK%2BfMIez7Diuyz1Jp5btqb9cKK0%2FDcev5zDEhBZ0%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FWorkforceSWWA&data=05%7C02%7CTWilliams%40workforcesw.org%7C6c99ef5111624357763108dc536523e7%7C37fd92a28edd48db993d6149f5585de3%7C0%7C0%7C638476941082972632%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=NC99KjImYF5qGuVzFHCaUcqxnNE9Lfw3HfQIcYzxnKI%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fsouthwest-washington-workforce-development-council%2F&data=05%7C02%7CTWilliams%40workforcesw.org%7C6c99ef5111624357763108dc536523e7%7C37fd92a28edd48db993d6149f5585de3%7C0%7C0%7C638476941082987162%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=g5eNxHDMVNd4QAWE6w%2Brnv1qtkq5c4Ix9WcSv7KUws0%3D&reserved=0



revised policy. Once approved by the Executive Committee, an email approval will be sent to the full
board.
 
Please respond via email to Traci with your “I approve” or “I do not approve” by EOD on
Friday, March 29, 2024.
Executive Approval Needed:

Approval needed for Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Adult, Dislocated Worker,
Youth and Economic Security for All Community Reinvestment grants with Career Path
Services, contract for April 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025. Contract amount not to exceed
$150,000 to provide services in Clark, Cowlitz, and Wahkiakum counties.    

Career Path Services (CPS) is currently the functional lead for the WorkSource

centers and serves as the Operator in the SW WA community.  With this leadership

role, CPS has the unique ability and qualification to oversee and implement a system

wide approach for WorkSource business services in our region. 
 

Approval needed for Washington Jobs Initiative- PY23 ARPA – Good Jobs Challenge with

Washington Employment Security Department, contract for April 1, 2024 to September 30, 2025.

Contract amount not to exceed $550,000 to provide services in Clark, Cowlitz, and Wahkiakum

counties.    
to support participant placement into quality jobs in the healthcare sector in Clark,
Cowlitz, and Wahkiakum counties. This project is focused on recruitment, training,
wrap-around services, and direct placement of participants into quality jobs within a
targeted healthcare industry occupation.

 
 
WSW Youth Incentives Policy #3042-1
 
This is a revision to our Youth Incentives Policy. In this revision, paid and unpaid work experience
was broken down into four different categories for which incentive payments are or are not allowed,
along with the frequency and amount.
 
Based on the approval process, this policy approval falls under Tier 3 Executive Committee
Approval and Full Board approval.
 
Tier 3 – Substantial
 

Definition: Substantial revisions consist of significant revisions to a current policy or a State
or Federal mandated “new” policy with local revisions made that will affect service delivery.
These revisions require approval from both Executive Committee and Full Board.

 
Thank you.

Best,
Traci



 
TRACI WILLIAMS
Senior Executive Administrator/Operations Manager
twilliams@workforcesw.org  360.567.1070 www.workforcesw.org
 
Workforce Southwest Washington
805 Broadway, Suite 412 | Vancouver, WA 98660
Follow us:  Twitter I LinkedIn
 
 
 
 

 
 

mailto:twilliams@workforcesw.org
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.workforcesw.org%2F&data=05%7C02%7CTWilliams%40workforcesw.org%7C6c99ef5111624357763108dc536523e7%7C37fd92a28edd48db993d6149f5585de3%7C0%7C0%7C638476941083002310%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=TGy5L9tZYUihWXYP5N2IxKwiydowgNCYrLgRnhNnw1w%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FWorkforceSWWA&data=05%7C02%7CTWilliams%40workforcesw.org%7C6c99ef5111624357763108dc536523e7%7C37fd92a28edd48db993d6149f5585de3%7C0%7C0%7C638476941083016661%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=IWmi%2Foe91x9fuxJlM2SFpbrHvbkehE6iJpWxicV93gg%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fsouthwest-washington-workforce-development-council%2F&data=05%7C02%7CTWilliams%40workforcesw.org%7C6c99ef5111624357763108dc536523e7%7C37fd92a28edd48db993d6149f5585de3%7C0%7C0%7C638476941083028843%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=7eTacO8c7W8NReVcsfYT%2BzkKrLbliIHNbq3vMoeh4hQ%3D&reserved=0


From: Traci Williams
To: Traci Williams
Subject: WSW Executive Committee ICS/Policy Email Approved - 7 Approvals
Date: Thursday, April 11, 2024 8:50:05 AM
Attachments: image002.png

image003.png

Yes:
Adrianne Watson
Corey Giles
Ted Sprague
Renny Christopher
Monte Constable
A.D. Simmons
Karen Bowerman
 
No:
N/A
 
Haven’t heard back from:
Paige Spratt
Mark Tishenko
 
Best,
Traci
 

TRACI WILLIAMS
Senior Executive Administrator/Operations Manager
twilliams@workforcesw.org  360.567.1070 www.workforcesw.org
 
Workforce Southwest Washington
805 Broadway, Suite 412 | Vancouver, WA 98660
Follow us:  Twitter I LinkedIn
 
 
 
 

 
 
From: Traci Williams 
Sent: Wednesday, April 3, 2024 3:38 PM
Cc: Miriam Halliday <mmartin@workforcesw.org>
Subject: WSW Executive Committee ICS/Policy Email Approval Needed
Importance: High

 
WSW Executive Committee Members,
 

mailto:TWilliams@workforcesw.org
mailto:TWilliams@workforcesw.org
mailto:twilliams@workforcesw.org
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.workforcesw.org%2F&data=05%7C02%7CTWilliams%40workforcesw.org%7C4113e5a366e0497f8b5308dc5a3f097e%7C37fd92a28edd48db993d6149f5585de3%7C0%7C0%7C638484474045819518%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=UMlobUpgkMslxFqgxLWkCVps2xdIpTQZr8e64E2jnmM%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FWorkforceSWWA&data=05%7C02%7CTWilliams%40workforcesw.org%7C4113e5a366e0497f8b5308dc5a3f097e%7C37fd92a28edd48db993d6149f5585de3%7C0%7C0%7C638484474045833363%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=OBoj3Pqkg1nGNYkRSZvr4zBUQHvOz9WqHBF0cTLPOmY%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fsouthwest-washington-workforce-development-council%2F&data=05%7C02%7CTWilliams%40workforcesw.org%7C4113e5a366e0497f8b5308dc5a3f097e%7C37fd92a28edd48db993d6149f5585de3%7C0%7C0%7C638484474045841131%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=9q0C4vPRHc1%2FIJyUCu%2F%2FJG6SkwW7tzAK15lXQdxY1sQ%3D&reserved=0




We have a few items that require your attention and your vote prior to our April Executive Committee meeting due
to the time sensitive nature of the items.
 
Please respond via email to Traci with your “I approve” or “I do not approve” by EOD on Friday, April 5, 2024.
Executive Approval Needed:
WSW Insured Cash Sweep (ICS) Account
 

WSW needs the Executive Committee’s approval to enter into an agreement with Umpqua
Bank, where the current checking account resides, to open an Insured Cash Sweep (ICS)
account where cash that exceeds the limit of the current FDIC insured amount of $250,000.00
can be deposited and will be insured. Umpqua bank is a member of the IntraFi Network
Deposits System which places deposits on our behalf at other financial institutions in amounts
not to exceed the limit of FDIC insurance allowing those deposits to be fully insured. All
amounts in the ICS account are next day accessible.

 
Amounts to be deposited to the ICS account include multiple cash grants received, BFET match
reimbursements, and other amounts detailed in the attached memo. The WSW Money Market
account at Columbia Credit Union will be closed as multiple banks accounts will no longer be
necessary. The amounts in the attached memo represents excess cash and does not include cash
deposits received from cost reimbursement grants to be used for current obligations.

 
The fee for the ICS account is $25 per month. The cash in the ICS account will earn interest. The initial
deposit total including the amount from the Columbia Credit Union Money Market Account will be
$475,000.00.
 
It is important to note that the attached memo and other account documents have been made
available for review by the Finance Committee and approved by Renny Christopher, the Treasurer for
the WSW Board of Directors.
 
WSW Thrive Eligibility Policy #3501
 

The Thrive (Economic Security for All) program has become increasingly more complex as we receive

additional funding for this program. WSW staff made the decision to combine all eligibilities for the different

funding sources under Thrive into one policy. This policy will support our service delivery partners by guiding

eligibility in one place.
 
Based on the approval process, this policy approval falls under Tier 3 Executive Committee Approval and Full Board
approval.
 

Tier 3 – Substantial
 

Definition: Substantial revisions consist of significant revisions to a current policy or a State or Federal
mandated “new” policy with local revisions made that will affect service delivery. These revisions require
approval from both Executive Committee and Full Board.

 
WSW Supportive Service Nonfederal Policy #3035-1
 

This is not a new policy for WSW; however, it was due for an update. WSW staff took a thorough look at the

requirements and were able to loosen the guidelines. This revision is the result of staff increasing cap

amounts and allowable supports provided using nonfederal dollars. A Thrive funding source is the only

source WSW administers currently that is eligible under this policy.
 
Based on the approval process, this policy approval falls under Tier 2 Executive Committee Approval and Full Board



notification.
 

Tier 2 – Intermediate
 

Definition: Intermediate revisions consist of minor tweaks to language to improve functionality for service
providers. The modification could be a change requested by the service provider. These revisions require
Executive Committee approval and Full Board notification.

 
Thank you.

MH
 

Miriam Halliday (she/her/hers)
Chief Executive Officer  
mhalliday@workforcesw.org I 503.367.8193 I  www.workforcesw.org

 
Workforce Southwest Washington
805 Broadway, Suite 412 | Vancouver, WA 98660
Follow us: Twitter I LinkedIn
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

mailto:mhalliday@workforcesw.org
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.workforcesw.org%2F&data=05%7C02%7CTWilliams%40workforcesw.org%7C4113e5a366e0497f8b5308dc5a3f097e%7C37fd92a28edd48db993d6149f5585de3%7C0%7C0%7C638484474045848520%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=0Zj105Po1Kh18csfm9r%2Bx1LKjx2%2FlNuUs5h%2BoOIdN%2Fo%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2FWorkforceSWWA&data=05%7C02%7CTWilliams%40workforcesw.org%7C4113e5a366e0497f8b5308dc5a3f097e%7C37fd92a28edd48db993d6149f5585de3%7C0%7C0%7C638484474045855747%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=eLyA7bTXIVJUJlOKkm1iaecvgzwQw1fNsGtAU%2BOfnWI%3D&reserved=0
https://nam10.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.linkedin.com%2Fcompany%2Fsouthwest-washington-workforce-development-council%2F&data=05%7C02%7CTWilliams%40workforcesw.org%7C4113e5a366e0497f8b5308dc5a3f097e%7C37fd92a28edd48db993d6149f5585de3%7C0%7C0%7C638484474045862656%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=8z4C2BD%2BuBvkBeZVfqMnXBadMWt3Z3czF5BX89ZhIdE%3D&reserved=0

	04242024 Executive Committee Meeting Packet
	04242024 Executive Committee Meeting Agenda
	2282024 WSW Executive Committee MinutesDRAFT
	Exec Contract Memo -April 2024 
	April Policy Memo
	WSW Draft IRS Form 990

	1003 Rev 6 Procurement Policy.DRAFT
	2011 Rev 2 Stevens Amendment Requirements.DRAFT
	4002 Rev 3 Coordinated Business Services.DRAFT
	Contract_Policy Email Approved - 5 Approvals
	WSW Executive Committee ICS_Policy Email Approv...

